

TOURO UNIVERSITY NEVADA
COLLEGE of OSTEOPATHIC MEDICINE



STUDENT GOVERNMENT
ASSOCIATION
BYLAWS

Table of Contents

| Article | Section | Article Title | Section Title | Page |
|---------|---------|----------------------------------|--|------|
| | | Preamble | | 3 |
| I | | Name | | 3 |
| II | | Purpose | | 3 |
| III | §1 | Membership | Eligibility | 3 |
| III | §2 | | OMSGA Categorical Voting Membership | 3 |
| III | §3 | | OMSGA Categorical Non-voting Membership | 4 |
| III | §4 | | Election and Appointment to Office | 4 |
| III | §5 | | Censure | 5 |
| III | §6 | | Recall | 5 |
| III | §7 | | Impeachment | 5 |
| III | §8 | | Vacancies | 6 |
| IV | §1 | OMSGA General Assembly | Membership | 6 |
| IV | §2 | General Assembly | Responsibilities | 7 |
| IV | §3 | | The Power to Over-ride a Veto | 7 |
| V | §1 | OMSGA Executive Cabinet | Executive Cabinet | 7 |
| VI | §1 | Executive Cabinet Members | President | 7 |
| VI | §2 | | Vice President of Student Affairs | 8 |
| VI | §3 | | Vice President of Academic Affairs | 8 |
| VI | §4 | | Vice President of Communications | 8 |
| VI | §5 | | Vice President of Finance | 8 |
| VII | §1 | Student Directors | Admissions Director | 9 |
| VII | §2 | | Community Outreach Director | 9 |
| VII | §3 | | Technology Director | 9 |
| VII | §4 | | Wellness Director | 9 |
| VIII | §1 | OMSGA Class Councils | OMSGA Class Council | 9 |
| IX | §1 | Class Council Members | Pro-tem OMS I Representatives | 10 |
| IX | §2 | | Pre-clinical Class Officers (OMS I and II) | 10 |
| IX | §3 | | Clinical Class Officers (OMS III and IV) | 11 |
| X | §1 | Meetings | Executive Cabinet | 11 |
| X | §2 | | General Assembly | 11 |
| X | §3 | | Class Council | 11 |
| X | §4 | | Class Assembly | 12 |
| X | §5 | | Special Meetings | 12 |
| X | §6 | | Quorum | 12 |
| X1 | §1 | Committees | Committees | 12 |
| X1 | §2 | | Standing Committees | 12 |
| XI | §3 | | Audit Committee | 15 |
| XII | §1 | Authority | Limitations of Binding Document Authority | 15 |
| XII | §2 | | Parliamentary Authority | 15 |
| XIII | §1 | Fiscal Management | Student Activity Fee | 15 |
| XIII | §2 | | Expenditures of Controlled Funds | 15 |
| XIV | §1 | Student Groups | Registration | 16 |
| XIV | §2 | | Privileges | 16 |
| XV | §1 | Amendment Procedure | OMSGA Action | 16 |
| XV | §2 | | Student Body Action | 16 |
| | | History | | 17 |

PREAMBLE

We the students of Touro University Nevada College of Osteopathic Medicine (Student Body), in order to better address our concerns through public dialogue and debate; to enable us to take proper action for the improvement of student life, do establish the following Bylaws for our Student Government Association:

ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of this organization shall be:

Touro University Nevada College of Osteopathic Medicine - Student Government Association
(OMSGA)

ARTICLE II: PURPOSE

The purpose of the Osteopathic Medical Student Government Association (OMSGA) is to represent the interests of the Student Body, keep the administration informed of those interests, and work with administration to make changes that benefit the entire medical Student Body; thereby serving their unique academic, non-academic, and social interests.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility

- A.** All matriculated students of the Student Body may be eligible for all seats on OMSGA
- B.** All members and candidates must be in good academic standing and not on any probation per discretion of the Dean of Students
- C.** All members may not hold two seats, voting or non-voting, on the OMSGA

Section 2. OMSGA Categorical Voting Membership

A. Executive Cabinet Members, in hierarchical order (5)

- 1. Student Body President (President)
- 2. Vice President of Student Affairs
- 3. Vice President of Academic Affairs
- 4. Vice President of Communications
- 5. Vice President of Finance

B. Pre-clinical Class Council Members, in hierarchical order – *First and Second Year (4x2=8)*

- 1. Chief Officer
- 2. Financial Officer
- 3. Academic Standing Committee Representative
- 4. Public Relations Standing Committee Representative

C. Clinical Class Council Members, in hierarchical order – *Third and Fourth Year (2x3=6)*

1. Chief Officer
2. Academic Standing Committee Representative
3. Public Relations Standing Committee Representative

D. Student Program Directors (4)

1. Admissions Director
2. Community Outreach Director
3. Technology Director
4. Wellness Director

Section 3. OMSGA Categorical Non-Voting Members

A. OMS I *pro-tem* Representatives

1. By definition are substitute OMS I representatives until the first year officer elections can take place
2. Will have a seat and voice on the General Assembly

B. Student Group Delegates

1. One delegate of registered privileged student group
2. Student Group Delegates shall represent their Student Group's opinion on the General Assembly

C. Consultants

1. The role of the consultants is purely that of advisory without the right to vote. Consultants should attend the General Assembly and where else requested.
2. OMSGA Administrative Advisor
 - Dean of Students for the medical school
3. OMSGA Parliamentarian
 - Appointed by the President yearly
4. OMSGA President Emeritus
 - Most recent past president
 - Shall be an ex-officio Member of the general assembly and audit committee

Section 4. Election or Appointment to Office

A. Executive Cabinet Members

1. Shall be elected by a majority vote of the voting student body (see standing rules for details)
2. Cabinet Members must not hold any other position in the OMSGA

B. Student Program Directors

1. Shall be elected by a majority vote of the voting student body (see standing rules for details)

C. Class Officer

1. Shall be elected by the most votes of the students voting (popularity vote) from their respective class (See Standing Rules for details)

D. Elections

1. General
 - a. The annual spring election for second, third, and fourth year Class Officers, the Executive Cabinet, and Student Program Directors shall be held during the

- spring semester at the discretion of the Executive Cabinet
2. First Year Class Officers
 - a. During orientation three OMS I *pro-tem* representatives will be elected by popularity vote
 - b. The annual fall election for first year class officer members shall be held no later than the end of the fall semester

E. Appointments

1. Parliamentarian will be selected by President

F. Terms

1. As defined in Standing Rules

Section 5. Censure

- A. All members are subject to censure
- B. Any member of the OMSGA may present a petition for censure to the President (or if president is subject to censure the Vice President of Student Affairs)
- C. The petition must contain the specific statements of the reasons for the censure and the terms here within
- D. The president (or if the president is subject to censure the Vice President of Student Affairs) shall inform the involved member for a presentation of defense and subsequently call a meeting with the general assembly to vote on the petition of censure
- E. Two-third of the general assembly must be in attendance for a quorum. If two-thirds of the votes cast are in favor the censure shall prevail

Section 6. Recall

- A. All members are subject to recall
- B. Any member of the student body may present a petition for recall to the President (or if President is subject to recall the Vice President of Student Affairs)
- C. The petition must be signed by at least 25% of the members from their respective constituency, and containing the specific statement for the reason of removal
- D. The President (or if the President is subject to recall the Vice President of Student Affairs) shall inform the involved member for a presentation of defense and subsequently call a meeting with the general assembly to vote on the petition of recall
- E. Two-third of the General Assembly must be in attendance for a quorum. If two-thirds of the votes cast are in favor the recall shall prevail
- F. If the recall prevails the member will be removed

Section 7. Impeachment

- A. All members are subject to impeachment
- B. Any member of the OMSGA may present a petition for impeachment to the President (or if President is subject to impeachment the Vice President of Student Affairs).
- C. The petition must be signed by at least 25% of the members from the OMSGA, and containing the specific statement for the reason of removal.
- D. The President (or if the president is subject to impeachment the Vice President of Student Affairs) shall inform the involved member for a presentation of defense and subsequently call a meeting with the General Assembly to vote on the petition of impeachment.

- E. Two-third of the General Assembly must be in attendance for a quorum. If two-thirds of the votes cast are in favor the impeachment shall prevail.
- F. If the impeachment prevails the member will be removed

Section 8. Vacancies

A. President

- 1. If the office of the President is vacant the Vice President of Student Affairs shall become the acting President. If the VP Student Affairs does not fill vacancy left by the Student Body President the Executive Cabinet will meet and appoint an Executive Cabinet Member to fill the vacancy. The acting President shall then nominate a candidate for the Vice President vacancy after consulting with the Executive Cabinet. The Candidate will then be ratified by OMSGA majority vote.

B. Executive Cabinet Members and Student Program Directors

- 1. If any Executive Cabinet or Student Program Directors seat is vacant the President shall nominate a replacement after consulting with the Executive Cabinet
- 2. The President shall present the nomination to the General Assembly
- 3. When the names are presented, the General Assembly shall **vote by ballot** on the question of confirming the replacement
- 4. Replacements shall take office immediately after being confirmed by the OMSGA
- 5. Replacements shall serve the remainder of the current position's term
- 6. If the replacement is not approved the President shall present an alternative nominee for appointment
- 7. It is not required that nominee have held a prior OMSGA position

C. Class Officers

- 1. The president shall present the nomination to the position's respective class
- 2. When the names are presented, the respective class shall **vote by ballot** on the question of confirming the replacement
- 3. Replacements shall take office immediately after being confirmed by the respective class.
- 4. Replacements shall serve the remainder of the current position's term
- 5. If the replacement is not approved the class's Chief Officer shall present an alternative nominee for appointment

ARTICLE IV: OMSGA GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Section 1. Membership

A. Members shall consist of:

- 1. Executive Cabinet
- 2. Class Council Members
- 3. Student Program Directors
- 4. Student Group Delegates
- 5. Consultants

Section 2. Responsibilities

- A.** Shall deliberate and vote on proposals
- B.** Shall adopt an annual budget and authorize all expenditures of OMSGGA controlled funds
- C.** Shall ensure adequate funds for operation of the OMSGGA
- D.** Shall vote on all appointments made by President

Section 3. The Power to Override a Veto

- A.** The General Assembly may override a Presidential veto
- B.** A resolution to override may be offered by any voting member
- C.** The vote required to adopt a veto resolution is a two-thirds vote

ARTICLE V: OMSGGA EXECUTIVE CABINET

Section 1. Executive Cabinet

- A.** Shall approve and develop proposals and agenda for each General Assembly meeting
- B.** Shall see that the duties and recommendations of the General Assembly meetings are carried out
- C.** Are authorized to take interim action on behalf of the General Assembly
- D.** Shall provide effective communication between the General Assembly, the faculty, and the administration
- E.** At the end of elected term shall orient the newly elected Executive Cabinet before the end of the spring semester

ARTICLE VI: EXECUTIVE CABINET MEMBERS

Section 1. President

- A.** Shall preside over and create agenda for the meetings of the General Assembly, Executive Cabinet and Audit Committee
- B.** Shall appoint:
 - 1. Parliamentarian
- C.** Shall Nominate:
 - 1. Student to fill any vacancy
- D.** May veto actions taken by the General Assembly within 48 hours of its passage.
 - 1. A written memo, stating the objections, shall be sent to OMSGGA all members
 - 2. The objections shall be read and recorded in the OMSGGA minutes at the next regular meeting
- E.** Shall have the privilege to represent the Student Body at gatherings, conventions, or meetings, on a local, state, national, and international level or may send an alternate in his/her place
- F.** Shall represent the OMSGGA on the Touro University Nevada Healthcare Unification Board (HUB)
- G.** Shall attend all Council of Osteopathic Student Government President (COSGP) conferences, and shall appoint one alternate from the OMSGGA to accompany the

president

- H. Shall act as an ex-officio member of all OMSGA committees and sub-committees

Section 2. Vice President of Student Affairs

- A. Shall preside over the meetings in the absence of the President
- B. Shall serve as liaison for all non-academic student issues
- C. Shall serve as liaison for all student groups
- D. Shall sit as the student representative on Disciplinary Action Committee
- E. Shall be the Chair of the Student Affairs Standing Committee
 - 1. Shall be an ex-officio member of all Student Affairs Standing Committee sub-committees
- F. Shall oversee the Election Committee (see standing rule procedures)
- G. Shall assist the President in his/her duties

Section 3. Vice President of Academic Affairs

- A. Shall be the Chair of the Academic Affairs Standing Committee
 - 1. Shall be an ex-officio member of all Academic Affairs Standing Committee sub-committees
- B. Shall serve as liaison for all academic student issues
- C. Shall sit as the student representative on the Academic Promotions Committee
- D. Shall be the student representative to the Faculty Curriculum Committee
- E. Shall assist the President in his/her duties

Section 4. Vice President of Communications

- A. Shall record the minutes of all regular and special meetings of the General Assembly and any OMSGA Student Body address
- B. Shall be custodian of all OMSGA records
- C. Shall serve as OMSGA Correspondent
- D. Shall work with the president to portray a positive public image of TUNCOM
- E. Shall be the Chair of the Public Relations Standing Committee
 - 1. Shall be an ex-officio member of all Public Relations Standing Committee sub-committees
- F. Shall assist the President in his/her duties

Section 5. Vice President of Finance

- A. Shall process payment of all accounts as authorized by the budget, and file records
- B. Shall deposit all income from OMSGA events or services
- C. Shall coordinate with the University Administration in an orderly and timely manner to exercise fiscal accountability and proper management of the OMSGA controlled funds
- D. Shall give a financial report at regular General Assembly, and Executive Cabinet meetings
- E. Shall submit a recommendation in writing to the Dean of Students before the end of the fall semester if a change in the OMSGA portion of the Student Activity Fee is desired for the succeeding academic year
- F. Shall inform members of the guidelines regarding the management of the OMSGA funds.
- G. Shall coordinate with OMSGA registered organizations to maintain fiscal accountability

1. Shall be an ex-officio member of any inter-organizational committee where OMSGA funds will be used
- H. Shall be the Chair of the Financial Advisory Standing Committee
 1. Shall be an ex-officio member of all Financial Advisory Standing Committee sub-committees
- I. Shall assist the President in his/her duties

ARTICLE VII: STUDENT DIRECTORS

Section 1. Admissions Director

- A. Shall report to the Vice President of Student Affairs and the University Office of Admissions
- B. Shall have a seat on the Student Affairs Standing Committee
- C. Shall coordinate all student involvement in the admission process with the University Office of Admissions
- D. Shall be the Student Affairs Standing Committee Representative to the TUNCOM Admission Committee

Section 2. Community Outreach Director

- A. Shall Report to the Vice President of Communications
- B. Shall have a seat on the Public Relations Standing Committee
- C. Shall be responsible for collecting reports from all registered student groups regarding current and future community outreach initiatives, as well as regularly communicating with individual group outreach representatives

Section 3. Technology Director

- A. Shall report to the Vice President of Communications
- B. Shall have a seat on the Public Relations Standing Committee
- C. Shall be responsible for internal and external web development and maintenance
- D. Shall be the Public Relations Standing Committee delegate to the University Technology Committee

Section 4. Wellness Director

- A. Shall report to the Vice President of Student Affairs
- B. Shall have a seat on the Student Affairs Standing committee
- C. Shall be responsible for coordinating OMSGA social events
- D. Shall be an ex-officio member of all sub-committees pertaining to social events
- E. Shall communicate with other programs regarding collaborative social and wellness events
- F. Shall develop programs to facilitate student holistic wellness (body, mind, and spirit)

ARTICLE VIII: OMSGA Class Councils

Section 1. OMSGA Class Council

- A.** Shall represent class opinion in OMSGA General Assembly
- B.** Shall communicate OMSGA deliberations and actions with respective class Student Body

ARTICLE IX: Class Council Members

Section 1. *Pro-tem* OMS I Representatives

- A.** Have a seat on the General Assembly without a vote
- B.** Represent the OMS I class on an interim basis
- C.** Serve as liaison for the academic and non-academic issues

Section 2. Pre-clinical Class Officers (OMS I and II)

A. Chief Officer

1. Shall create agenda for and preside over all class Student Body meetings and Class Council meetings
2. Shall act as the official class officer and have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
3. Shall represent the class on all non-academic issues
4. Shall hold a seat on the Student Affairs Standing Committee
5. Shall be an ex-officio member of the class committees

B. Financial Officer

1. Shall preside over the meetings in the absence of the Chief Officer
2. Shall hold a seat on the Financial Advisory Standing Committee
3. Shall construct, propose, and maintain class budget
4. Shall have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
5. Shall process payment of all class specific accounts
6. Shall give a financial report at all regular class meetings
7. Shall assist the Chief Officer in his/her duties

C. Academic Standing Committee Representative

1. Shall hold a seat on the Academic Standing Committee
2. Shall serve as liaison for academic issues of the class involving faculty relations and educational testing issues
3. Shall have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
4. Shall assist the Chief Officer in his/her duties

D. Public Relations Standing Committee Representative

1. Shall record the minutes of all class Student Body meetings and Class Council

- meetings
- 2. Shall hold a seat on the Public Relations Standing Committee
- 3. Shall have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
- 4. Shall assist the Chief Officer in his/her duties

Section 3. Clinical Class Officers (OMS III and IV)

A. Chief Officer

1. Shall act as the official class officer and have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
2. Shall create agenda for and preside over all class Student Body meetings and Class Council meetings
3. Shall serve as liaison of all non-academic student affairs
4. Shall be an ex-officio member of all class committees
5. Shall be a member of the Financial Advisory Standing Committee
6. Shall construct, propose, and maintain class budget
7. Shall give a financial report as necessary at regular class meetings

B. Academic Standing Committee Representative

1. Shall preside over the meetings in the absence of the Chief Officer
2. Shall hold a seat on the Academic Standing Committee
3. Shall serve as liaison for academic issues of the class involving faculty relations and educational testing issues
4. Shall have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
5. Shall assist the Chief Officer in his/her duties

C. Public Relations Standing Committee Representative

1. Shall record the minutes of all class student body meetings and Class Council meetings
2. Shall hold a seat on the Public Relations Standing Committee
3. Shall have a seat and vote on the General Assembly
4. Shall assist the Chief Officer in his/her duties

ARTICLE X: MEETINGS

Section 1. Executive Cabinet

- A.** The Executive Cabinet will meet at minimum twice a month. The time and place will be specified by the President and approved by the Executive Cabinet. It must be during a time that all members are available to regularly meet.

Section 2. General Assembly

- A.** The OMSGA General Assembly shall meet at minimum quarterly. The time and place specified by the President and approved by majority of the General Assembly (per

standing rules).

Section 3. Class Council

- A. The time and place will be specified by the Chief Class Officer and approved by the Class Council. It must be during a time that all members are available to regularly meet.

Section 4. Class Assembly

- A. The OMSGA Class Councils shall assemble a meeting with their constituents at minimum once a semester. The time and place specified by the Chief Class Officer and approved by majority of the Class Council.

Section 5. Special Meetings

- A. Urgent business for either the General Assembly or the Executive Cabinet that cannot wait until the next regular meeting can be handled at a special meeting.
- B. A special meeting may be called by an Executive Cabinet Member or two OMSGA members. All members must be contacted and informed of purpose prior to the meeting.

Section 6. Quorum

- A. One-half of the respective OMSGA membership is required for the transaction of business.

ARTICLE XI: COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees

- A. Standing Committees and Sub-Committees are to meet as determined by their respective Chairs
- B. The Chair of the Audit Committee or any Standing Committee is also an ex-officio member of all respective sub-committees
- C. Standing committee delegates will be selected from their respective standing committee members. Standing Committee Delegates will represent their Standing Committee and OMSGA on designated committees
- D. Standing Committee sub-committees may have associate members from the student body at large
 - 1. Associate Members are students who have been invited by the Standing Committee's chair to volunteer on specific initiatives or events

Section 2. Standing Committees

- A. Standing Committees are to work as extensions of their respective Chair's role on the Executive Cabinet in helping them better accomplish their tasks and duties
- B. Academic (5)**
 - 1. The Vice President of Academic Affairs will be the Chair of the Academic Standing

- Committee
- 2. Members
 - a. Chair (1)
 - b. Class Elected Academic Representatives (4)
- 3. Delegate Positions
 - a. Library Committee Delegate
- 4. Scope and Responsibilities
 - a. Provide an effective and efficient forum to receive, examine, work to solve, and reply to the suggestions and concerns of the Student Body regarding any aspect of academics, as well as to propose tangible solutions and suggestions to the General Assembly or Executive Cabinet.
 - b. Formulate and represent student opinion including, but not limited to:
 - Academic Curriculum
 - Faculty
 - Testing procedures and appeals to exam questions
 - Library sufficiency
 - Clinical Education
 - Student awareness and adoption of professionalism and ethics at large or in documentation
 - Deliberation regarding all Clinical Rotations and Post Graduate opportunities, including residencies, internships, and licensure
 - c. To assist the Vice President of Academic Affairs in his/her duties

C. Student Affairs (5)

- 1. The Vice President of Student Affairs will be the Chair of the Student Affairs Standing Committee
- 2. Members
 - a. Chair (1)
 - b. Class elected Chief Officers (2)
 - c. Student Admissions Director (1)
 - d. Student Wellness Director (1)
- 3. Delegate Positions
 - a. Safety Committee Delegate
 - b. Student Healthcare Committee Delegate
- 4. Scope
 - a. Provide an effective and efficient forum to receive, examine, work to solve, and reply to the suggestions and concerns of the Student Body regarding any aspect of non-academic student affairs, as well as to propose tangible solutions and suggestions to the General Assembly or Executive Cabinet.
 - b. Formulate and represent student opinion including, but not limited to:
 - Facilities
 - Admissions and processes involved
 - Student safety
 - Student Services
 - Wellness of the Student Body
 - University and program social event planning and coordinating
 - Elections
 - c. To assist the Vice President of Student Affairs in his/her duties

D. Financial Advisory (5)

- 1. The Vice President of Finance will be the Chair of the Financial Advisory Standing

- Committee
- 2. Members
 - a. Chair (1)
 - b. Elected first and second year Financial Officers (2)
 - c. Elected third and fourth year Chief Officers (2)
- 3. Delegate Positions
 - a. Financial Aid Committee Delegate
- 4. Scope
 - a. Provide an effective and efficient forum to receive, examine, work to solve, and reply to the suggestions and concerns of the Student Body regarding any aspect of fiscal management and accountability, as well as to propose tangible solutions and suggestions to the General Assembly or Executive Cabinet.
 - b. Shall formulate budget and funding in accordance with required OMSGA representative travel and expenses (per standing rules)
 - c. Formulate and represent student opinion including, but not limited to:
 - OMSGA Budget
 - Book Keeping Processes
 - Fiscal Accountability
 - d. To assist the Vice President of Finance in his/her duties

E. Public Relations (7)

- 1. The Vice President of Communications will be the Chair of the Public Relations Standing Committee
- 2. Members
 - a. Chair (1)
 - b. Class elected Public Relations Committee Representatives (4)
 - c. Student Community Outreach Director (1)
 - d. Student Technology Director (1)
- 3. Delegate Positions
 - a. University Technology Committee Delegate
- 4. All student publication editors are encouraged and invited to attend as associate members
- 5. Scope
 - a. Provide an effective and efficient forum to receive, examine, work to solve, and reply to the suggestions and concerns of the student body regarding any aspect of public relations, as well as to propose tangible solutions and suggestions to the General Assembly or Executive Cabinet.
 - b. Formulate and represent student opinion including, but not limited to:
 - Public opinion of school at large
 - Outreach Project approval
 - Direction and promotion of student publications
 - Facilitate communication amongst students, the public, and organizations on or off campus
 - Communicate with Alumni
 - Facilitate promotion of OMSGA sponsored activities to appropriate audiences
 - Continue and preserve the historical account and record of TUNCOM
 - Work with administration on program marketing and public relations initiatives

c. To assist the Vice President of Communications in his/her duties

F. Special Committees

1. Special committees may be created as needed. The General Assembly, Executive Cabinet, or Standing Committees may establish and then designate a special committee's Chair, responsibilities, number of members, and tenure

Section 3. Audit Committee

A. Audit

1. The President will be the Chair of the Audit Committee
2. Members
 - a. Chair (1)
 - b. Executive Cabinet (4)
 - c. Dean of Students (1)
 - d. Student Body President Emeritus (1)
 - e. Parliamentarian (1)
3. Scope
 - a. Maintain and promote adherence including, but not limited to:
 - Bylaws
 - Budget
 - Standing Rules

ARTICLE XII: AUTHORITY

Section 1. Limitations of Binding Document Authority

- A. These bylaws shall at no time or in any way abridge the students' rights or obligations as set forth in the student handbook, the college catalog, the Constitution of the State of Nevada, or the Constitution of the United States of America.

Section 2. Parliamentary Authority

- A. The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the OMSGGA in all cases where they are not inconsistent with these bylaws, or any special rules of order adopted by the OMSGGA.

ARTICLE XIII: FISCAL MANAGEMENT

Section 1. Student Activity Fee

- A. The OMSGGA will receive funding through the TUNCOM Student Activity Fee as authorized by the Dean of Students. The Vice President of Finance of the OMSGGA must submit a recommendation in writing to the Dean of Students before the end of the fall semester if a change in the OMSGGA portion of the Student Activity Fee is desired for the succeeding academic year.

Section 2. Expenditures of Controlled Funds

A. Authorization

1. OMSGA funding will only be authorized within the limits set by the adopted OMSGA budget or approved amendments of the budget.

B. Reimbursement

1. Reimbursement will be give only for OMSGA approved expenses.

C. Requisitions

1. Requisition forms will be used to solicit reimbursement for approved expenses. Copies of receipts must be submitted with forms in order to validate expenses.

D. Unauthorized Expenses

1. Unauthorized expenses shall be the responsibility of the person making the financial commitment. A retrospective request for reimbursement may be made to the General Assembly in writing through the Vice President of Finance.

ARTICLE XIV: Student Groups

Section 1. Registration

- A. Student groups may request OMSGA recognition by submitting an official registration application to the Executive Cabinet. It is the OMSGA Executive Cabinet's responsibility to review the groups' applications and grant group recognition and classification (per standing rules).

Section 2. Privileges

- A. Only recognized student groups may use the following terms or insignias: "Touro University Nevada", "Touro", "TUN", "TUNCOM", or a Touro University seal, or otherwise indicate any relationship to the University or Program.
- B. Student groups are to show affiliation to TUNCOM by including some form of the University's name in their official student group's title.
- C. Recognized student groups may apply to the OMSGA for funding by guidelines set in the Standing Rules. Submissions are to be made to the Vice President of Finance.

ARTICLE XV: AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

Section 1. OMSGA Action

- A. These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the OMSGA General Assembly by a two-thirds vote, provided that the amendment has been submitted in writing at the previous regular meeting.

Section 2. Student Body Action

- A. OMSGA General Assembly passed amendments shall be published and made available to the student body for a minimum of two weeks before being voted on by the Student Body.

B. Any amendment will be ratified if approved by two-thirds of the votes cast by the participating Student Body.

Bylaw History:

- Ratified by the Class of 2008 (the first class of Touro University College of Osteopathic Medicine) April 4, 2005, herein, initiating the first established student government of Touro University Nevada College of Osteopathic Medicine.
- Bylaws amendments OMSGA Resolution 014 (2005-11-30) and Resolution 021 (2006-02-15) passed by 2/3 participating Student Body vote on April 1, 2006, herein, the bylaws were amended as written.